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MILLSTONES AT CITY PARK HAGERSTOWN 
When plans were being made for the construction of the City Park in Hagerstown, John Kausler, in 

1922, proposed that a millstone circle be part of the park.  So, at the entrance of the park a 

millstone circle was installed.   

There is a sidewalk that surrounds the circle.  The circle is the meeting point of S. Prospect St, 

Summit Ave, and Virginia Ave. Old mill stones that once ground grain in the Washington County 

grist mills were embedded in the sidewalk.  There are eleven millstones in total.  Each stone has a 

small bronze plaque that tells the name of the mill that once was the home to the grinding stone.   

Two stones are from the Manor Mill.  Manor Mill was built by Samuel Ringgold in 1795.  The mill 

was on his estate known as Fountain Rock.  There were several mills on his property.  This mill 

would have been near the present site of St. James College. 

Three stones are from the Andrew Hager Mill that was built around 1791.  This mill is still 

standing on Mill Street, behind Hagerôs Park.  

Two millstones are from the Broadfording Mill that was built prior to 1800.  This mill was located 

on the bank of the Conococheague Creek.  The horses and wagons forded the stream at this spot.  

Today, a bridge spans the Creek at the old mill site. 

Two stones are from the Joseph Long Mill.  This mill was built in the late 1790ôs.  The mill was  

located near a place known as Spielmanôs that was alongside the Norfolk and Western Railroad.  

The mill was a two storey stone building with a hipped roof.  This mill got its water from Marsh 

Run.  Another name for this mill is the Fairplay Mill. 

Two stones are from the Hezekiah Claggett Mill that was built in the late 1790ôs.  This mill was 

also known as Priceôs Mill. 
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CHARLES MILL  
 

This mill is located in Washington County near the town of Downsville.  Drive south on SR 632,  

through Downsville, to the McMahon Marina, which is on the Charles Mill Road.  This road runs 

off of the Dillinger road.  This will be about one and a quarter miles southwest of Downsville.  The 

mill is on the west bank of Big Slack Water at the Potomac River, twelve miles from Hagerstown.   

This mill is also known as Shafferôs Old Flouring Mill and also the Avis Mill.  Avis was the owner 

of the Shafferôs Old Flouring Mill.  At this time the mill produced flour, feed and plaster.  Another 

name for this mill was the Cedar Grove Mill.  A famous local politician whose name was Benjamin 

Galloway owned the mill around 1814.  The mill is now called McMahonôs Mill. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The mill is a four storey structure which has red siding today.  There are two dormers on the side of 

the roof facing the river while the other side has three dormers.  The millstones were on the second 

floor of the mill.  The stones were driven by power from a twentyfoot diameter wooden overshot 

waterwheel.  Today, the mill has a twentyfoot metal Fitz overshot waterwheel.  All of the mill 

equipment has been removed.  There is a metal pipe flume that directs the water to the wheel. 

The Charles mill, also known as the McMahon Mill, was built around 1778 on the Downey Branch 

at the Big Slack Water.  This was one of the deepest spots on the Potomac River.  The mill used 

water from the Downey Branch spring.  The Chesapeake and Ohio Canal was built alongside the 

Potomac River.  The mill road was the only access to the canal in this area.  There was a great deal 

of storm damage to the canal and today there is no evidence of a canal alongside the Potomac 

River.  Even the towpath has been washed away.   
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In 1922, the mill was closed due to a flood that almost covered the mill with water.  The original 

wooden overshot water wheel was replaced with a steel wheel that was also used to generate 

electricity. 

The National Park Service acquired the mill around 1976 as part of the C & O Canal Park.  No 

equipment is in the mill.  The windows of the mill are boarded up today.  Bill McMahon had 

removed all milling equipment before the Park Service acquired the property.  He built an ñopen 

airò mill behind his restaurant.  He had planned to make this a ñdemonstration millò.  He had two 

runs of millstones and several roller mills.   

The mill is three and a half storied frame structure that has a gambrel roof.  There are dormers on 

the roof. 

Milling ceased around the 1920ôs.  At that time, the twenty foot steel waterwheel was installed with 

a governor and a fifteen KW electric generator.  This supplied electricity to the mill and millhouse.  
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CLINEôS MILL  
 

This mill is located on route 68 between Alt. US 40 and SR 65.  The mill is located at the place 

where the road to Breathedsville intersects SR 68.   

On the way to the mill you will cross over a one lane two arch stone bridge that was built before 

the Civil War.  It crosses over the Antietam Creek.  There is a very nice park here called the Black 

Devil Park that is situated alongside of the Antietam Creek.  This is a good area to do a little 

fishing or just to sit and listen to the water rush over the dam.   

This mill is a three storey building which has wide sheet metal which covers the sides of the mill.  

The structure has a brick front.  The brick gable has a fast fading sign that readsðGeorge Cline 

Feed Service, Grain, Feed and Coal.   

Today a sign in front of the mill readsðThe Feed Bin. Plants and animal feed are sold here today.  

On one side of the building is a covered area where the wagons or trucks could bring the grain into 

the mill to be weighed and then processed into feed. 

The roof line in somewhat unusual.  There were two small towers perched on top of the roof.   

The owners of the mill were not able to give us any additional history of the mill but it is 

interesting to see the wide diversity of mills in this county.      
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DOUBôS MILL  

 
Doubôs Mill is located in Washington County.   

The roads listed are those in this county.  Go south on SR 66 to I-70.  Cross the highway and within 

a short distance turn onto Beaver Creek Road.  The mill complex consists of a mill that is now a 

private residence, a stone barn, and several other stone and brick buildings. This mill has had 

several other names such as the Funkôs Mill, the Woodside Mill and Doubôs Mill.   

This three storey stone mill was built between 1811 and 1822 by John Funk and replaced a wooden 

gristmill that had collapsed at this site.  The story is that the frame structure had been overfilled 

with grain and this is said to have caused the collapse of the building.  When Mr. Funk rebuilt the 

mill he used local limestone.  In 1820, two men working at the mill,  processed 12,000 bushels of 

wheat, rye, and corn into flour.  At that time flour was selling for $78 per barrel. 

In 1831, John Doub bought the mill.  By that time, five stone houses had been built nearby on the 

Little Beaver Creek.  These houses and other outbuildings were part of the original mill complex 

that was built in the German tradition.  One house has the date 1792 inscribed in the stone.  Before 

Doubôs purchase, the entire property belonged to the brothers Henry and Christian Newcomer.  The 

brothers were Mennonites of Swiss-German origin. 

Doub came to Frederick County in 1830.  At that time he bought 264 acres of land.  The Doubôs 

heirs owned and operated the mill until 1949.   

In 1930 the mill ceased to operate as a commercial mill due to the lack of demand for the products.  

However, the mill continued to do custom grinding for the neighbors until 1945.  From 1930 to 

1945, a store and a post office operated in part of the first floor of the mill.  Gas pumps also had 

been installed in front of the mill.  
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Frank L. Doub sold the mill in 1948 to Mr. and Mrs. Morgan.  Morgan ran a store, a post office and 

a cooperôs shop.  He used the mill as an antique shop and also as an auction house.  He commented 

that the mill was built like a fortress.  The basement walls were five feet thick and the first floor 

walls were forty-two inches thick. 

 

 

 

In 1968, the Morgans sold the mill to John Shaffer.  He planned to turn the mill into a political 

retreat.  He replaced the original metal roof with cedar shakes.  At this time, he added two dormers 

on the front and four on the back.  He replaced the original nine over six windows with six over six 

panes. In 1978, the mill was sold, but the new owners were not able to obtain permits to convert the 

building into a private residence.  Mr. and Mrs. Perini bought the mill in 1979.  In prior years 

extensive vandalism had occurred.  In addition the mill was located in the flood plain.  Sewage had 

to be pumped one thousand feet away from the building.  The neighbors granted easements to the 

new owners and the mill was converted to the private residence that you can see today.    

 

                                                             

 

THE EAKLES MILL SITE  
 

This mill was located on the Little Antietam Creek southeast of Keedysville.  From SR 67, turn 

west onto Dogstreet Road.  At Mt. Briar road, turn left. This will be in a southeast direction, 

continue on to the Eakle Mill Road.  The mill site is on the east side of the road, west of the 
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Baltimore and Ohio railroad tracks, which have been removed, but one can see where the railroad 

tracks had been. 

The first owner of this mill was David Furry.  In 1826, he sold the mill to his son-in-law, David 

Keedy.  An 1850 record shows that the mill was owned by Martin Eakle.  The mill produced flour 

and feed. 

Martin Eakle, from 1816 to 1878, owned two hundred acres of land.  He was listed as a miller and 

a merchant.  By 1880, Martinôs son, Rohrer, operated the mill.  However, the 1887 record lists H. 

M. R. Eakle as the miller.   

Today, one can see remnants of the millrace.  The dam has been somewhat damaged by vandals.  

However, the dam could probably be restored.  The mill has disappeared.  Probably, when the 

present road was built the mill was destroyed.  There was a post office in the mill at one time. 

A turbine was installed in the mill.  To supplement this power, a steam engine was added. 

By 1890, the mill was operated by a Ira Snively.  The Boonsboro News, of March 24, l955, listed 

Isaac Smith as operating a saw and planing mill at this location.   

There is an old metal bridge over the stream at the site of the original road to the mill.  The bridge 

was built in 1900 by the John Wagaman Company.  The bridge was commissioned by local 

officials, Isaac Ankeney, Joseph Ernst, and Samuel Stouffer. 

The village of Eakles is an interesting place.  It contains many old houses built in the early 1800ôs.  

We had an interesting conversation with a family who lived in a house built in 1820.  The village 

church was built in 1832. 

Dogstreet is also an interesting road.  There is a one lane stone arch bridge over the Antietam 

Creek.  Nearby is a stone barn built in 1754 and a stone house built in 1784.  German masons built 

the barn and house using local quarried stones.  Note, the barn was built first to house their 

precious livestock, and then their house.   
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FOUCH MILL SITE  
 

This mill site is in Yarrowsburg, which is on MD 67 north of Weverton.  The mill was on the 

Yarrowsburg Mill Road along side of the Israel Creek.  Yarrowsburg Road was also known as the 

Kaetzel Road.  This mill is also known as the David Fouch Mill, Grim Mill and the Bartholow 

Mill.  

John Fouch bought this mill from Hezekiah Boetler and wife in 1839.  In 1842 John sold the mill to 

a John Grim.  In an 1854 sale record The David Fouch Mill is mentioned in a bill of sale of wheat.  

Alexander Grim, in 1863, purchased the former Boetler-Fouch Mill. 

Richard Grimôs grist and sawmill was sited as a landmark in the 1910 ñVoting Precincts of 

Washington County, Marylandò.  

The M. Bartholow Mill was on the east side of the Baltimore and Ohio railroad, south of the 

Bartholow Station.   

The shingle roof burned from sparks from a train locomotive.  The mill was a four storied building.  

However, only the foundation remains today.     

The Duke University Library is said to have the papers of the Jennings family in Washington 

County, MD.  These papers contain the account book of David Fouch for milling.   

 

 

 

GILBERTôS MILL  
 

This mill is in the vicinity of Leitersburg.  If one is coming from Smithsburg on the Leitersburg-

Smithsburg highway, the mill will be near a hollow where the Little Antietam Creek passes under 

the road.  A cluster of buildings hugs the road.  The larger stone structure is the mill and the 

millerôs house is to the west of the stone mill.  The mill was once a three and a half storied 

building.  Now only two stories remain.  An entrance porch has been added.  This mill is also 

known as the Bowmanôs mill. 

 

The mill is now a two storied stone building.  Christopher Burkhart is said to have built a mill at 

this site in 1779.  An advertisement in the 1793 Washington Spy refers to ñJacob Gilbertôs Mill at 

this site.  Gilbert had purchased two hundred acres of land from Abraham Stouffer in 1789.  

Stouffer is also said to have built this mill.  In 1799, Abraham Moyer bought the mill from John 

Gilbert.  Unfortunately, Moyer suffered financial problems and in 1825 he had to sell the mill.  

Frederick Bell bought the mill.  Bell, in 1837-38, installed new machinery in this mill.   Frederick 

died in 1839 and his son, in 1840, bought the mill. 
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This mill had elliptical stone arches and heavy pegged window frames that suggests that Abraham 

Stouffer had built the mill. The mill had two runs of buhrstones.  

 

In 1857, Daniel Mentzler removed the old building and built a new mill at this site.  The mill was 

regarded as the most ñcommodiousò mill on the Antietam Creek.  This mill was a three storied 

building.  The walls were stone up to the second floor and then weatherboard siding was used.  The 

mill had a frame gable roof.  Each side had four bays and the end had three bays.  In 1886, this 

building was completely destroyed by fire.  The mill had a thirtytwo foot metal overshot water 

wheel.  When the road was opened a culvert under the road fed the water to the mill.        

Other owners of the mill were Samuel Etnyer, David M. Deitrich, Jeremiah Fahrney, Ellias 

Stottlemeyer, and George Bowman.    .   
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George Bowman was born in 1852.  In 1886 he purchased the mill on Little Antietam Creek.  He 

installed the roller process in the mill.  In 1889 he also served as postmaster at Mills, which was the 

name of the little village.  Space for the post office was added to the south side of the mill.  Around 

1920, George built a brick house across the road from the mill for himself and his family.  In 1930, 

Amos, Georgeôs son, inherited the mill.  Amos added a large one storey structure to the mill.  This 

structure was used for storage and also served as a general store.  In 1941, Amos purchased the 

farm across from the mill.  There was a large stone house on the property and this is where he 

lived.  The mill closed in 1952.  At this time the mill was converted into rental apartments.   

 

 

 

 

In 1980, when the road was repositioned, the frame overhang that provided shelter for the loading 

of the farm wagons, was removed.  Also, at this time the upper floor of the mill was removed and 

today we see a two storey stone structure.   

Rachel, the daughter of Amos, married William Niemyer and they live in the stone farmhouse 

today.  They had two daughters, Carolyn and Linda.  Carolyn married an Amsley and lives in the 

brick house across the road from the mill and Linda, married a man by the name of Baker and they 

live in the original millerôs house that is west of the mill.  The daughter of Linda, Kelly Skank, and 

her husband Richard and daughter Devyn Rachael live in the old mill structure.  Six generations of 

the Bowman family have lived at the mill.   

We met both of the daughters, Carolyn and Linda.  They were very eager to show us around the 

property.  We saw the millrace that had concrete walls and evidence of the millpond and dam.  The 

headrace passed under the road to the mill.  The tailrace has been filled in with dirt;  it was hard to 

decide where it had been.   
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As with most mills there are interesting stories to tell.  One such story is about their grandmother 

who burned down the barn at the mill when she was burning the chicken nests.  The daughters 

remember their grandmother keeping pies on a shelf in the cave beneath the millerôs house.  The 

cave does not exist today.  This is an interesting mill to visit.   

 

 

                                      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 






























































